
 
Lake Havasu City Police Facility 
2360 McCulloch Boulevard North 
Lake Havasu City, Arizona  86403 

Work Session 
Minutes – Final 

 
Tuesday , October 11, 2016                                                                                                                                                                                                                5:00 PM 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Nexsen called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The Mayor led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: Councilmembers Mark Nexsen, Dean Barlow, Don Callahan, Donna Brister-McCoy, Jeni Coke, 

and Cal Sheehy 
ABSENT: Councilmember Michele Lin 
 
CALL TO PUBLIC 
There were no requests to address the Council. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
5.1 Public Safety Pension Retirement System (PSPRS) Financial Outlook 
Administrative Services Director Tabatha Miller addressed the Council and stated that pension liability and the 
increasing cost is not unique to Arizona but in the fiscal year 2015 changes in government accounting required 
that all governments add to their financial statements their unfunded pension liability.  She said what that means 
for Lake Havasu City is that staff added approximately $75 million in liability to the City’s books.  Ms. Miller 
stated that $50.5 million or over two-thirds of that amount is related to the Public Safety Retirement System 
(PSPRS) and the remaining one-third is related to the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS), making one-
third of the employees responsible for two-thirds of the unfunded liability.  Ms. Miller said what that means 
going forward is that it is going to impact contribution rates and how the City funds that.  She stated that 
Proposition 124 that passed last year will make some changes and certainly changes going forward for new 
members to help alleviate some of that stress. 
 
Senior Budget Analyst Cassandra Clow reviewed the following for Council: 

 Types of Retirement Plans 
 PSPRS Overview 
 Member Benefits 
 Employee/Employer Costs 
 Actuarial Projections 
 Proposition 124 (SB 1428) 
 Expenditure Limitation 

 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 2 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 3 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 4 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 5 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 6 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 7 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Mayor Nexsen stated for clarification, this is not the contribution rate it is the percentage of annual salary.  He 
added if somebody is making $50,000, at 60 percent the City is paying an additional $30,000 for retirement 
benefits, to which Ms. Clow stated that was correct. 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 8 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 9 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 10 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 11 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 12 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 13 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 14 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 15 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
Ms. Miller stated that staff used the lower PSPRS contribution rate in this current fiscal year due to the 
Expenditure Limitation (EL) because staff was concerned that it would count as an expenditure.  She said when 
Proposition 124 was written it was actually written to exclude PSPRS contributions especially above and beyond 
the minimum required from the EL but that language was taken out of Proposition 124 because some 
municipalities thought that it was debt of the municipality and therefore when it is paid, it would be treated like a 
debt payment and would be exempt from the EL.  Ms. Miller stated that staff contacted the State Auditor’s Office 
who deals with the EL and enforces any violations, and they said it is an expenditure and will be treated like an 
expenditure whether you make minimum or additional contributions.  She added that staff does acknowledge the 
$50 million liability and added that the City could make payments against it but are not sure how to get around 
the EL.  She said the City could accrue the money and set it aside but cannot fund PSPRS directly.  Mayor 
Nexsen stated that it was his understanding that the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (League) was pushing 
very hard for this to not count against the cities on the EL but Maricopa County attorneys fully believed and 
convinced everybody that it would not impact the cities, so the League did not push the issue.  Mayor Nexsen 
stated unfortunately the Maricopa County attorneys were wrong. 
 
Mayor Nexsen stated it is a good thing that the Permanent Benefit Increase (PBI) changed because that was a 
death sentence for any of the retirees over time because you cannot increase the benefit 4 percent on an annual 
basis then have losses of 17 percent and still receive the 4 percent.  Mayor Nexsen stated to get around the EL the 
City could have earnings on more of our assets.  He said if we borrowed and funded the actuarial present value of 
what it would take based on certain earnings, the City would be able to contribute less over time if there were 
more assets in the account today, especially with today’s interest rates.  Ms. Miller stated not necessarily locally 
in Arizona but she has heard of municipalities in other states, because the interest rates are so low, borrow money 
to fund their unfunded pension liability.  She said it is a possibility but expressed concern with the negative dips 
in interest rates.  Mayor Nexsen stated that as long as your earnings exceed your interest rate you can calculate 
whether or not you are better off funding that liability and how much quicker you can catch up to fully funded.  
He added that he thought there was a mathematical equation to see if it does make sense based on the interest 
rates.  Mayor Nexsen said he assumed that the City would not be able to manage our own fund and would have to 
have a fund manager which has not shown to be a stellar performance in the past.  He added that even though 
each one of the PSPRS funds are separate funds, they are pooled for the purpose of a fund manager and are 
broken out separately so the City does not have any control how they are investing.  Councilmember Sheehy 
asked who manages the PSPRS fund, to which Ms. Miller stated that she does not know who manages the 
PRPRS but added they do contract the fund management.  Councilmember Sheehy asked, as contributors, if the 
City has any say or a seat on the PSPRS board.  Ms. Miller explained that the City has no say on that board only 
the local PSPRS that manages our local eligibility and decisions for employees.       
 
Mayor Nexsen stated that nine or ten years ago the PSPRS was not allowed to invest in emerging markets 
because of their investment policy.  He added that changed but unfortunately that was when the emerging 
markets started going in the other direction.  He said the PSPRS wants to remain conservative but you have to 
make sure if you are going to remain conservative you have to earn enough to actually fund the liability.  
Councilmember Sheehy asked if that was controlled by the Legislature.  Ms. Miller explained that the Arizona 
Revised Statutes control what they are allowed to invest in and added that the ASRS and PSPRS have different 
investment outlines and that ASRS has consistently out-performed PSPRS. 
 
Councilmember Sheehy asked if the Governor appointed the PSPRS Board.  Ms. Miller stated that Proposition 
124 changed the makeup of the Board because one of the problems was that they did not have sufficient 
representation from fund managers, accountants, and financial people and the people that were doing the 
investing did not have the background that they felt was needed.  Mayor Nexsen stated that they can pool the 
assets for investment but they cannot pool the liability so each city and town is completely separate. 
 
 



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 16 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
Vice Mayor Callahan asked if there was a limit to how much of the unfunded liability the City can pay.  Ms. 
Miller stated there is nothing to stop us other than the EL.  Mayor Nexsen said the other thing that PSPRS was 
trying to encourage cities to do, instead of paying it piecemeal over 24 or 26 periods, pay it all up front and that 
way if they are earning 8 percent you get to earn it on that lump sum right from the beginning as opposed to over 
time.  He added the opposite works if they have a really bad year. 
  
City Manager Charlie Cassens asked if the City were to establish an account and put money into that every year 
and not call it a retirement fund but call it an account where there is a hedge against the City’s unfunded liability 
if the City could do that.  He asked secondly, if staff would have an expectation that the City would be able to 
realize a better return on managing that account as opposed to PSPRS.  Ms. Miller stated the problem is that both 
the statute and the City’s own investment policy are limited as far as riskier investments.  She added the City’s 
issue is getting past those EL’s on what we can invest.  She stated that the City is also limited to a maturity of less 
than five years and is limited in the ability to invest in high return equities so the City does not have the ability to 
take that money and put it into a separate account.  Ms. Miller stated that it could be put in the City’s account but 
the return on investment is 1.5 percent to 2 percent. 
 
Councilmember Sheehy stated that the presentation showed the unfunded liability as a flat line, and wondered if 
that would continue to grow or remain flat.  Ms. Miller stated that it is based on a certain point in time and an 
estimate of the current makeup or actuarial.  She added the difference is there will be a split on July 1, 2017 when 
the new plan begins.  She said what staff is being told by PSPRS is that the plan will stand on their own as a 
separate fund.  Ms. Miller stated while that line may not stay flat, staff does not necessarily know how it will be 
impacted based on the decisions and changes that will happen over time. 
 
Councilmember Sheehy stated if he recalled correctly, last budget year or the year before that the City did fund 
some additional monies towards PSPRS.  Ms. Miller stated that was correct but when the EL came earlier than 
expected staff did not want to run into that issue. 
 
Mayor Nexsen stated as a general rule for both fire and police, if we earned approximately 8 percent going 
forward the unfunded liability would shrink over time.  He added the problem is if it is only earning 6 percent or 
3 percent.  He said at 6 percent it looked like it was kind of shrinking but at 3 percent the unfunded liability was 
getting worse.  Ms. Miller stated historically 6 percent will help going forward but that 6 percent over the past ten 
or eleven years that it averaged did not go towards the unfunded liability because the PBI impacted that.    
 
Mayor Nexsen asked if staff’s graphs and the expected unfunded liability take into account Proposition 124.  Ms. 
Miller stated they were based on the current system and current retirees.  She added that Ms. Clow contacted 
PSPRS but they did not have an idea how they were going to manage the fund.  Mayor Nexsen asked staff to look 
at scenarios to get around the EL and reduce the unfunded liability. 
  
Councilmember Barlow stated in going through the slides he got the very distinct impression that the City has 
very little control over the pension system and wondered if the retirement age could be increased by one or two 
years.  Ms. Miller stated that the City could not do that but said in doing research staff did find out that Phoenix 
and Tucson have their own pension systems for their typical pool such as the ASRS but not for the PSPRS.  She 
added that once you are enrolled going backward is almost impossible. 
 
Mayor Nexsen opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Matt Maloney, Lake Havasu Professional Firefighters President, addressed the Council and stated that he 
appreciated the hard work everyone has put into revamping the PSPRS system and they have made a lot of good 
changes.  He said back in 2004 there were new guidelines put in place because the fund had been mismanaged.  
He added everything with regard to the fund is reviewed annually so they are not making any long term decisions  



Lake Havasu City Council Work Session                                                                                                                           Page 17 of 17 
Tuesday, October 11, 2016, 5:00 p.m. 
 
because they are not sure what is up and coming with the fund.  Mr. Maloney stated in December some members 
from the PSPRS will be coming to Lake Havasu City and invited everyone to attend the meeting to learn more 
about the PSPRS. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Nexsen closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Nexsen stated that Mr. Maloney’s point is well taken because when some of the newer firefighters go to 
the Defined Contribution Plan, they will not be contributing to the old plan so there will be an impact there as 
well.  Mr. Cassens stated another consequence of the program is younger recruits are expected to make a much 
higher contribution going forward than they have in the past and that could potentially affect the City’s ability to 
recruit because their pension liability is going to be a pretty good chunk of their paycheck.  Mayor Nexsen stated 
long term; he thought it would be better because at least they are going to have assurances that their retirement 
plan is going to be funded. 

 
ADJOURN 
Upon motion by Vice Mayor Callahan, and seconded, the meeting adjourned at 5:51p.m. 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full and true copy of the Work Session meeting minutes of the Lake 
Havasu City Council held on the 11th day of October, 2016.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called 
and posted, and that a quorum was present. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Kelly Williams, City Clerk/CMC 

 
 

Prepared by: 
 

                        
                       Sacia Graber, City Clerk Assistant/CMC 
  
 


